
 
 

Collaborative Workspace Program – Questions and Answers – FY22 

Q: Is it necessary for a collaborative space to operate on a membership basis in order to be eligible 
for funding? Or is it permissible for the space to operate on a pay-as-you-go basis?  

A: While we would consider an application from a pay-as-you-go space, many of the questions and 
scoring criteria relate directly to a space’s ability to identify and demonstrate a strong connection to its 
user community. 

Q: The RFP has a question which indicates that the proposal can include a Municipal Letter of 
Support. Could I ask for a little more information regarding who one might reach out to write such a 
letter? Would somebody from the Mayor's office or the Chamber of Commerce be appropriate?  

A: A letter from the chief elected or appointed municipal official would be best indicating the 
community’s support for the proposed project. 

Q: Our space is, for the most part, well-suited and furnished already.  We are considering two big 
changes: one, I am looking to buy a space we could move the center to-- I've been looking, and will 
hopefully find an attractive property sometime in the next six months.  Two, we are considering 
converting from a sole proprietorship to a co-op, allowing many of our 'core' practitioners to become 
empowered owners.  For the former, we could use some money for the purchase and/ or the future build-
out; for the latter, it would be much easier to get the transition done if we were able to pay the co-op 
participants for participating in the process of forming the co-op.  I don't know if either of these 
purposes quite fit the terms of the grant? 

A: Grant funds would not be able to be used for purchase of the space, but could be used for future 
build-out once the space is identified. Paying co-op participants for participating in the process of 
forming the co-op would not be an eligible expense. Rather than a Fit-out Grant you may also want to 
think about applying for a Seed Grant in this particular round for some of the planning and feasibility 
work that you are undertaking. 

Q: Our makerspace is in its early stages of operation, working out of a temporary, reduced-rent 
space and sponsored by a local non-profit utilizing small, local grants.  We are delivering scheduled 
workshops in several skill areas.  We are working with our current landlord as well as a local realtor to 
identify a permanent space.  While we are not ready to retrofit a particular space, we are in need of 
makerspace-specific expertise in improving our organizational structure, marketing, space management, 
etc.  We are currently working on a scope of work to be more specific about our needs.  Is it allowable to 
submit for seed funding to procure a third party consultant with makerspace expertise to help us in these 
areas given we have not identified a permanent space? 

A: The request as described would be appropriate for a Seed Grant application. 

Q: What are the key evaluation criteria that Mass Development uses in determining the program 
eligibility? Is there a specific set of tools of evaluation?   

A; Please see the Evaluation Criteria in Section 6 of the RFP. 



 
 

Q: If the overall renovation budget far exceeds that of the maximum amount of the fit-out grant, 
should I tie the application and the proposed use of funds to a specific segment of the renovation, or 
shall I present the complete scope of the renovation, and let the process decides if/what portion of the 
construction budget is eligible for funding?  

A: Please present the complete scope of the Project, but identify the items for which you will 
request grant funding. 

Q: We recently opened our collaborative space on May 1. I see that Paid invoices demonstrating 
cash committed to the project may not be dated earlier than May 27, 2021 for matching purposes. I am 
curious if there is any consideration for spaces that have just recently completed fit-out costs for their 
spaces? We were unable to apply for any of the COVID-relief funds as we were not yet open but 
underwent a complete space renovation and fit-out in order to open that was entirely self-funded. We're 
hoping to understand if there is any way to apply any of our very recent fit-out costs to this grant. 

A: Paid invoices demonstrating cash committed to the project may not be dated earlier than May 27, 
2021 for matching purposes. 

Q: Could 'soft costs' be further defined? 

A: Soft Costs in this context mean architectural, design planning, engineering or other studies. 

Q: Our community has turned a building over to an artist collective for the past two months for 
creative work and technical support to BIPOC artists and creatives. We are doing the same with a youth 
group working with artists and creatives of color to learn the business of creative expression. We would 
like to continue both of these residencies this fall, with the building as the host location serving as a pilot 
Artist in Residence program. 

A: We would consider such an application, but the competitiveness of the application would be 
enhanced by a building owner’s long-term commitment to sustain the programs as described. Please be 
further advised that many of the review criteria relate directly to a space’s ability to identify and 
demonstrate a strong connection to its user community. 

Q: Is the amount of $100,000 the total amount to be split between all awardees’? Or is that amount 
possible for each person that is awarded?    

A: Up to $100,000 is available for each successful fit-out applicant, and up to $15,000 is available 
for each successful seed applicant. Most awards are likely to be less than those amounts. Applicants 
should carefully consider what they actually need and should not default to applying for the maximum 
amount possible. 

Q: Can an example of a Collaborative Workspace be a shared space for a hair salon?  Like all 
separate hair artists each taking a room or mini salon?  Or even possibly a variety of options within the 
space?  Like a tattoo artist, makeup designer, etc.? 



 
 

A: We would consider such an application, however, many of the questions and criteria relate 
directly to a space’s ability to identify and demonstrate a strong connection to its user community, and 
focus on local partnerships and programming. 

Q: What is the earliest date that funds spent are eligible to be reimbursed through this grant? 

A: May 27, 2021. 

Q: Please clarify what are eligible expenses in the category of fit-out costs, particularly, are 
furnishings necessary to run a shared workspace appropriate for this grant (workstations, ergonomic 
furnishings, A/V-ready meeting room tables, etc.)? 

A: The costs identified in the question would be eligible costs. 

Q: Our community is considering applying for seed money to analyze the potential reuse of both a 
library and church for potential creative co-work/incubator spaces. Town meeting approved a ramp for 
handicapped accessibility for one of the buildings. Could that ramp serve as the Town’s match for 
purposes of the application? Also, could both sites be considered as part of the same grant application? 

A: For a seed grant application, evaluation of both sites would be a permissible scope. While we 
may consider the ramp as a match if costs for the ramp are incurred on or after May 27, 2021, the 
application would be stronger if the Town committed matching funds to be contributed toward the study. 

Q: Does the coworking space's exact physical location need to be finalized prior to applying for the 
grant?  

A: For a seed grant applicant, the exact physical location does not need to be finalized, but the scope 
should detail the specific spaces to be evaluated.  For a fit-out applicant, the exact physical location 
should be finalized and under control of the applicant.  If an applicant owns a multi-building site or 
campus, and at time of application is still considering the merits of which on-site building would be 
most suitable to host the space, we would consider such an application. 

 


